M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 20, 2003
9: 05 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 5, Side A
SFC 03 # 5, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:05 AM
PRESENT

Senator Gary W1 ken, Co-Chair
Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny d son

Al so Attendi ng: ZACH WARWCK, Staff to Senator CGene Therriault; PAT
DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Finance Division,
Legi slative Affairs Agency; CAPTAI N ROBERT W NTER, Sout heast Al aska
Pilots’ Association; JEFF BUSH, forner Deputy Conm ssioner,
Department of Community and Economi c Devel opnent, and Menber and
current Chair of the Board of Mirine Pilots; KATE TESAR
Representative, Alaska Yacht Services and Provisioning, PETER
CHRI STENSEN, Marine Pilot Licensing Coordinator, D vision of
Qccupational Licensing, Departnent of Conmunity and Econonic
Devel opnment; PAUL FUHS, Representative, Southwest Alaska Pilots
Associ ati on

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Ofnet Sites: DAVID SOKOL; DOUG
GREASON, Delta Marine

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 20- EXTEND BOARD COF MARI NE PI LOTS

The Commttee heard testinmony from the bill’s sponsor, the
Department of Community and Economi ¢ Devel opnment and took public
testinmony. The bill was held in Commttee.

SFC- 03 (1) 02/ 20/ 03



#sb20

SENATE BI LL NO. 20
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of Marine
Pilots; and providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

ZACH WARWCK, Staff to Senator Gene Therriault, informed the
Commttee that this | egislation wiuld extend the term nation date
of the Board of Marine Pilots to June 30, 2007. He noted that,
while the Division of Legislative Audit report [copy on file] dated
Novenber 1, 2002, supports this extension, the report recomends a
revi ew be conducted regarding the current regulation that requires
foreign-flagged ships exceeding 300 gross tons to hire marine
pilots. In addition, he continued, the report recommends that the
marine pilot exenption for Canadian naval ships be further
clarified. He noted that the Senate Labor and Comerce Conmittee
(SL&C) considered the recomrendati ons, and reported the bill from
commttee as presented wth the determnation that the
recommendat i ons shoul d be addressed in separate |egislation.

Senat or Hof f nan asked whet her the SL&C commi ttee addressed all four
of the Audit reconmmendati ons.

M. Warwi ck responded in the affirmative. He reported that the drug
testing recommendati on has been discussed with the marine pilots
associ ati ons.

Co-Chair WIken specified that the Division of Legislative Audit’s
determ nations on the drug testing issue, the Canadi an warships
i ssue, and the 300 gross weight tonnage issue would be addressed
separately.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, D vision of Legislative Audit,
testified to the four recomrendati ons as foll ows.

Recommendation No. 1
The Board of Marine Pilots (BMP) should take action to ensure
regi onal pilot associations adm nister mandatory random drug
testing prograns in a manner consistent with established
regul at ory standards.

Ms. Davi dson commruni cated that Recommendati on No. 1 addresses the

need for adequate drug testing foll owup on m ssed drug testing as
wel |l as further clarification regarding the nunber of pilots being

SFC- 03 (2) 02/ 20/ 03



tested. She explained that wunder authority granted in State
statute, the Board of Marine Pilots adopted federal regulations
that require 50 percent of licensed marine pilots be tested. She
continued that the federal regulations further provide for the
est abl i shnent of pr of essi onal associations wthin |arger
consortiums to increase efficiency in the process, and that the
consortiuns have drug-testing authority. However, she inforned, the
audit determ ned that one of the professional associations within a
consortium did not nmeet the 50 percent marine pilot drug test
sanpling requirenment. She asserted that the 50 percent nandate, as
adopted by the Board, nust be adhered to. She noted that while the
Departnment did not agree with the audit’s interpretation of the
testing sanpling requirenents, further discussion established that
nore exact guidelines nust be supplied to the consortiuns to ensure
that the sanplings neet the requirenents.

Reconmendati on No. 2

The BMP should establish nore informative and conprehensive
reporting requirenments so the Marine Pil ot Coordi nator (MPC
can confirmthat an appropriate nunber of licensed pilots are
consistently being subjected to random testing.

Ms. Davidson stated that Recommendation No. 2 specifies that the
total nunber of marine pilots subject to the drug testing
requi renent, the nunber tested, and the results of those tests
shoul d be reported to the Departnent’s Marine Pilot Coordinator.
She specified that it is the responsibility of the Board to address
those individuals failing the test.

Recommendati on No. 3

The | egi sl ature shoul d consider anmending current statutes in
order to extend mandatory drug and al cohol testing to pilot
organi zati on trai nees and apprentices.

Ms. Davi dson communi cated that the third recommendati on calls upon
the Legislature to determ ne whether the existing statutes should
be nodified, specifically as the current regul ati ons address drug
testing for licensed pilots but not for trainees or apprentices.

Reconmendati on No. 4

The Board of Marine Pilots should seek statutory authority to
allow the board the discretion to grant waivers of pilotage
requi renents to | arge pleasure crafts.

Ms. Davidson continued that the fourth recommendati on suggests that
the Legislature should consider statutory changes to allow the
Board to grant nmarine pilot exenptions for specified vessels. She
voi ced the concern “that economc activity is either being diverted

SFC- 03 (3) 02/ 20/ 03



from the State” or vessels are traveling in the State but not
conmplying with existing regul ations. She asserted that “there does
not appear to be any enforcenent activity and it is difficult to
have | aws on t he books” when no one is enforcing them

Senat or Bunde announced that no marine pilot has failed a drug
test.

Ms. Davidson affirmed that the audit revealed no problem wth
marine pilots failing drug tests.

Senat or Hof f man asked whet her the nunber of |icensed marine pilots
is sufficient to service all pleasure crafts, were the marine
pi | ot age regul ati on enforced.

Ms. Davidson responded that this issue was not addressed in the
audit. She noted that, due to insufficient data, it is difficult to
determ ne the potential nunber of vessels that mght require an
onboard marine pilot. She stated that Appendix B on page 35 of the
audit report depicts the extent of the audit’s questioning on this
i ssue.

Appendi x B

Department of Comrunity and Economi ¢ Devel opnent

Board of Marine Pilots

Survey Results

Question 4: Do you think that the licensing requirenents are
sufficient to ensure a conpetent pool of marine pilots?

Response Marine Pilots
Yes 89 %
No 11 %

Co-Chair WIlken directed Ms. Davidson to attend any Conmttee
hearing involving a Division of Legislative Audit report.

Ms. Davi dson concurr ed.

Co-chair WIken conmented that, were nodifications to the current
regul ati ons consi dered, the on-going issue regardi ng whet her or not
Canadi an warships should have a l|icensed narine pilot onboard
shoul d be addressed.

Co-Chair WI ken asked Captain Wnter to explain the relationship
between United States and Canadi an warships as well as US Coast
Guard and Canadi an Naval warshi ps.

CAPTAIN ROBERT W NTER, Representative, Southeast Al aska Pilots’
Associ ation, declared that the US Navy supports an exenption of al

SFC- 03 (4) 02/ 20/ 03



“friendly naval warships” from the marine pilot requirenent;
however, he announced, the Southeast Al aska Pilots Association
(SEAPA) does not support a bl anket exenption because of |anguage
barriers and other safety concerns. He expressed that SEAPA woul d
support an exenption for Canadian naval vessels honeported in
British Colunbia which are famliar with Al askan waters.

Co-chair WIlken clarified that extending wai vers to Canadi an nava
vessel s based in British Colunbia woul d be acceptabl e to SEAPA

Captain Wnter concurred and voiced that regulations currently
provide this exenption. He furthered that “there is a reciprocal
agreenent” between the United States and Canada that allows, for
i nstance, a US Coast Guard vessel from Alaska to transverse the
inside waters of British Colunbia provided there is a m ni num of
two navi gational officers onboard who have “a two-trip” experience
in those waters. However, he declared, Canadian naval vessels
routinely request a nmarine pilot be on board.

Senat or Bunde asked how a Canadian officer would acquire the
necessary training to operate in Al aska waters.

Captain Wnter replied that Canadian officers could acconplish the
required training by serving on ships transversing Al askan waters.
However, he clarified, SEAPA would support a waiver for British
Col unbi a based naval vessels w thout this docunentation.

JEFF BUSH, forner Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, and Menber and recent Chair, Board of Marine
Pilots testified in support of the BMP extension. He appl auded the
findings of the audit and urged the Legislature to address the
issues raised in the report, specifically the exenption for
Canadi an naval vessels and the waiver for yachts. He voiced that
the Board and the consortiuns have di scussed the drug testing of 50
percent of marine pilots regulation, and he noted that he is
“confortable” with the progress being nade.

M. Bush advised that the requirement specifying that vessels
exceedi ng 300 tons nust have a marine pilot onboard was enacted in
1995 in response to safety concerns regarding a “quite large”
G eenpeace vessel, the Rainbow Warrior, which was operating in
Al askan waters without a marine pilot. He opined that, “that one
bad situation” spawned | egislation “that created nore problens than
we needed.” He commented that it costs up to $3,000 a day to have a
mari ne pilot on board, and he asserted, this expense in conjunction
with the disconfort of having “a stranger |ive onboard” a private
vessel deters large yachts fromvisiting the State and negatively
affects the State’s econony. He voiced that, “it would be

SFC- 03 (5) 02/ 20/ 03



appropriate to address this situation and find a way” to allow
t hese vessels to cone to Al aska.

M. Bush expressed support for a marine pilot waiver fee being
i npl emrented. He communi cated that, due to the expense of operating
the small Division of GCccupational Licensing program two-year
marine pilot |icenses cost approximtely $2,500, and he suggested
t hat $500 woul d be “a reasonable” waiver fee. He stated that this
fee would “alleviate” the expense of the marine pilot |icense fee
and set a precedent for other states. He specified that this fee
| evel woul d be acceptable to marine pilots.

KATE TESAR, Representative, Al aska Yacht Services and Provi sioning,
revi ewed her professional experience with marine pilot operations
and the yachting and cruise ship industries. She inforned that she
was involved in the “nmgjor rewites” of the Marine Pilot Act of
1991 and 1995, and she spoke in favor of extending the term nation
date of the Board. She infornmed the Committee that Al aska Yacht
Services and Provisioning has determned that the marine pilot
requirenent as it applies to foreign-flagged yachts exceedi ng 300
gross tonnage, is “an inpedinent” to business. She urged the
Commttee to nodify this regulation, and she echoed earlier
testinmony that this law, while mndated on the books, “is
unenforceabl e’ and is an econom c obstruction because vessels are
choosing not to visit Al aska.

Ms. Tesar infornmed the Conmttee that the 1991 revisions to the
Marine Pilot Act were the “direct result” of the Exxon Val dez
tanker oil spill *“catastrophe,” and that prior to the further
changes in the Act in 1995, all pleasure craft of donmestic or
foreign registration were allowed to travel in Al aska wthout
marine pilots onboard. She stressed that this issue nust be
reeval uated due to the changes in the industry and the unforeseen
growh in the nunber of l|arge yachts being built. She voiced
concern about the negative econom c inpact resulting fromthe Act
and affirmed that the audit report recomrendations are valid.

Ms. Tesar reviewed the State of Washi ngton vessel waiver system and
noted its inclusion of a waiver application fee. She voiced that a
simlar fee should be instituted in Alaska to offset the expense of
the marine pilot license fee. She furthered that, as part of the
wai ver application process in Washington, the state eval uates the
“authority and expertise” of the vessel’s captain. She voiced
support for this concept.

Ms. Tesar spoke to the difficulty experienced by pleasure craft

crew in coordinating yacht traffic in A aska. She explained that a
vessel nust contact the State's piloting associations twenty-four

SFC- 03 (6) 02/ 20/ 03



hours in advance of arrival while large cruise ships schedul e
approximately a year in advance to ensure that accommobdations are
in place. She reviewed that each of the 430 cruise ships dockings
in Juneau in 2002 required a mninmum of one, and nore often two,
marine pilots on board. She expressed that the volume of ship
traffic in the sumrer nonths places a trenendous demand on mari ne
pil ots.

Ms. Tesar voiced that safety concerns including such things as an
event occurring that could negatively affect the tourist industry
coul d be addressed by instituting an intelligence tracking system
for vessels traveling between the US and Canada. She stated that US
Custons, US Imm gration and Nationalization Service (INS), the US
Coast Guard and other intelligence agencies are involved in
di scussions regarding foreign flagged vessels in US waters. She
noted, however, that many vessels that are built and owned by
citizens of the United States are registered in a foreign country,
particularly Geat Britain.

Ms. Tesar stated that US Custons requires that foreign flagged
vessels apply for a US cruising permt. She noted that |ocal
intelligence gathering networks are conprised of such entities as
the local port authority, port service industries and |ocal
busi nesses that watch for suspicious activity anong vessels. She
stated that were a waiver systemin place, it would provide further
intelligence regardi ng what ships are transversing Al askan waters.

Ms. Tesar referred the Commttee to the Mari ne Exchange of Al aska
information [copy on file] that is included in the nenbers’
packets. She explained that this information provi des additional
tracking system options such as the “Automated Secure Vessel
Tracking Systenf which uses satellite comrunication to report a
vessel s position.

Ms. Tesar asserted that an increase in yacht traffic in the State
could infuse “lots of new noney” into the econony. She testified
that yachts spend approximately “30 percent over the cost of the
trip itself in comunities” on such things as restaurants, port
fees and shoppi ng. She stressed that due to the uncertainty of safe
travel in other foreign destinations, Alaska is a “premere
destination” and action should be taken to encourage this traffic.
She pointed out the letters of support fromtourism businesses in
support of the tonnage exenption. She stated that the State shoul d
be addressing the recommendations in the Audit report as well as
determning “how to attract these desirable i ndependent” vessels to
Al askan waters in a safe navigational manner

Senat or Bunde observed that while foreign flagged vessels over 300
tons are required to have marine pilots aboard, simlar sized US

SFC- 03 (7) 02/ 20/ 03



fl agged vessels are exenpt fromthe requirenent.

Ms. Tesar confirmed that any size private vessel registered in the
US is exenpt fromthe marine pilot requirenent.

Senat or Bunde characterized the gross ton neasurenent system as
“archaic,” and he suggested that, were the regulation revised,
consi deration be given to include the | anguage “length of vessel.”
He warned that utilizing waiver fees to offset marine pilot |icense
fee should be further explored, as this |anguage would entail
dedi cat ed funds.

Senat or Hof f man asked whet her the nunber of |icensed marine pilots
is sufficient to provide pilots for both cruise ships and pl easure
crafts.

Ms. Tesar voiced that “anecdotally” she has heard of problens with
the availability of a sufficient nunber of marine pilots, and she
spoke of a situation whereby a retired marine highway ferry captain
has had to refuse calls to pilot small vessels prinmarily because he
is not a nenber of a marine pilots association. She continued that
there are approximately 37 licensed marine pilots in Southeast
Al aska with approximately 13 nore licenses to be issued within the
next few years. She deferred to yacht boat owners and the narine
pil ot associations to better answer the question.

Senat or Hof fman asked the fee level that would be required for a
marine pil ot waiver.

Ms. Tesar responded that the waiver fee schedule for the State of
Washi ngt on, “WAC 363-116-360 Exenpt vessels” [copy on file], is
included in the nenber’s packets. She clarified that a fee schedul e
for Al aska has not been established at this tine.

DAVID SOKOL testified from an offnet site in QOraha Nebraska. He
comuni cated that the 38-foot, 350-ton private vessel he owns is
registered in England, was built in the United States, 1is
exclusively a pleasure craft, and is not for hire. He announced
that six of the seven-nenber crew, including both captains, are
Anerican, and that one of the vessel’s captains spent over three
years piloting in Al askan waters, and he declared that all nenbers
of the crew undergo random drug tests. He affirnmed that tonnage
cal cul ations could be interpreted a nultitude of ways.

Co-chair Wlken interjected that letters fromM. Sokol to various

menbers of the Alaska Legislature are included in the Menbers’
packets.

SFC- 03 (8) 02/ 20/ 03



M. Sokol informed the Conmttee that even though he had previously
traveled in the State, he was unaware of the State’s marine pil ot
tonnage regulations. He continued that wupon l|earning of the
requi renent, he contacted the State’s marine pilot coordi nator who
referred him to the marine pilots associations to arrange for
pilots for the upcoming trip. He was inforned that the rates would
range between $1,400 and $2,200 a day plus room food and
transportation to and from the yacht. He stated that due to an
insufficient nunber of marine pilots being available during his
six-week trip tinmeframe, he was asked to consider changing the
dates of his trip. He was infornmed that another option would be to
alter his port of call plans in order to require a marine pil ot
only when the vessel needed to be noved. He noted that he woul d be
required to pay for the pilot’s transportation costs.

SFC 03 # 5, Side B 09:52 AM

M. Sokol stated that although he is famliar with marine pilot
regulations in other areas of the county, Canada, and Central
Anerica, he “has never faced a situation” where a marine pilot was
requi red seven days a week on the vessel. He stated that, in
addition to the expense factor, supplying a marine pilot with a
st at eroom woul d present a hardshi p because he would be required to
reduce the nunber of guests he could house. Consequently, he
stated, due to the cost, the inconvenience, and the noveability
restrictions placed on the vessel he opted to cruise to British
Col unbi a (BC) Canada, instead of Al aska. He noted that the vessel,
the crew, and the passengers infused approxinmtely $300,000 into
the BC econony through purchases of fuel, food, fishing guide
services, reservations, and provisions. He nentioned that Canadi an
officials granted a marine pilot exenption to his vessel within two
weeks of the application being submtted.

M. Sokol voiced support for marine safety neasures, including
i nsurance requirenents; however, he asked that a waiver system be
considered to exenpt qualified vessels and crews fromthe marine
pilot requirement. He infornmed the Commttee that although yacht
owners highly recommend travel to Alaska, and it is known that the
marine pilotage regulation is relatively unenforced, he asserted
that nmany yacht owners, including hinself, would not risk
jeopardi zing their vessel or their personal reputation, and would
t herefore, he opined, decide not to visit the State.

Senat or Bunde inquired whether yacht insurance rates mght be

negatively affected by vyachts, “either through ignorance or
ignoring the law requiring a marine pilot” incurring an accident in

SFC- 03 (9) 02/ 20/ 03



the State.

M. Sokol believed that insurance rates would be negatively
affected, as, he attested, nost insurance policies require a vessel
to be in conpliance with the rules and regul ations of an area.

Senator Bunde asked for clarification as to when a vessel is
required to have a marine pilot onboard.

M . Sokol understood that a marine pilot nmust be onboard a vesse
when “the anchor was up or we were away from dock.” He commented
that the distance between conmunities in Southeast Al aska
“effectively” requires a pilot to be onboard 24 hours a day.

Senat or Bunde asked that further clarification be supplied to the
Committee.

Co-chair WI ken thanked M. Sokol for testifying. He acknow edged
that the next testifier’s conpany, Delta Marine, has also submtted
witten testinony to the Legislature, which is included in the
Menbers’ packets.

DOUG GREASON, Delta Marine, testified offnet from Seattle,
Washi ngton and voiced agreenent with M. Sokol’s comrents. M.
Greason expressed that yachts “are global vessels with gl obal
owners,” and as such could travel anywhere in the world. He
furthered that when negative issues arise about an area, these
vessel s just go somewhere el se. He asserted that his conpany relies
on refitting and building these global vessels, and that his
busi ness is negatively inpacted when these vessels do not travel in
the Northwest, including Al aska.

M. Geason professed that the use of “the archaic” 300 gross
tonnage neasurenment system is inappropriate for international
vessels. He clarified that, with the exception of the United
States, other ~countries wutilize an “international” tonnage
measurenment. He stated that the US Coast Cuard issues |icenses with
both US tonnage and international tonnage designations in
recognition of this fact. He urged the Commttee to incorporate the
i nternational tonnage definition into any proposed | egislation.

PETER CHRI STENSEN, Marine Pilot Licensing Coordinator, D vision of
Cccupational Licensing, Departnment of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent, explained that while some Canadian warships are
typically granted marine pilot exenptions, he asserted that the
State has “really stretched” the law. He read the exenption as
witten in statute.

SFC- 03 (10) 02/ 20/ 03



Co-Chair WI ken asked whet her the Departnent could produce a draft
revision to address this issue.

M. Christensen replied in the affirmative.

Senator Bunde asked the Departnment to «clarify under what
circunstances a Marine Pilot would be required to be onboard a
forei gn owned vessel

M. Christensen read the regul ati on and comuni cated that the Board
has determ ned that a vessel at anchor or tied to a dock woul d not
require a pilot.

Senat or O son asked whether Canada provides a simlar exenption to
US naval ships traveling in Canadi an waters.

M. Christensen responded that Canada reviews whether one of the
vessel’s officers has, within the previous three or five years,
transversed BC waters and issues a determination. He stated that
Al aska requires two of the Canadian crew to have experience in
Al askan wat ers.

Senator Bunde opined that any proposed |anguage change should
specifically exenpt Canadi an warships rather than exenpting all
“friendly” foreign vessels fromthe marine pilot requirenent.

PAUL FUHS, Representative, Southwest Al aska Pilots’ Association
spoke in support of the extension of the Board of Marine Pilots. He
recounted occasions in which the Board was responsive to
Associ ation nenbers’ concerns. He stated that “in addition to
providing safe pilotage of vessels in this time of increased
concerns about security, the marine pilots” serve as a first line
of defense because they are usually the first American citizen
onboard a foreign vessel. He continued that while the Association
does not object to exenpting Canadian warships from the marine
pilot regulation; he noted that US warships historically request a
marine pilot be onboard their vessels when in Al askan waters even
though it is not required.

M. Fuhs stated that the pilots associations are working with the
bill’s sponsor to address the pilotage exenption waiver and ot her
security concerns in separate |egislation. However, he voiced, the
State should retain the ability to make deci sions regarding these
i ssues.

Senat or Bunde questi oned how unforeseen i ssues m ght be addressed
were a marine pilot waiver systemin place.

SFC- 03 (11) 02/ 20/ 03



M. Fuhs expressed that requiring the Board to be an active
participant in the waiver process as well as requiring a marine
pilot to board a vessel on its initial voyage to the State would
ensure that safeguards “would be in place, both for national
security issues” and to validate the conpetency of the crew and the
vessel

Captain Wnter testified that, in his professional opinion, the
Board of Marine Pilots conducts essential responsibilities. He
voi ced support, on behalf of the marine pilots association, for the
bill as presented. He proclained that Al aska’s Marine Pil otage Act
“serves the shippers, the cruise industry, and the public well.” He
stated that the Act “is the envy of many other states” and that the
State’s marine pilots “serve to protect the integrity” of the Act.

Captain Wnter responded to questions that arose during other
commttee hearings on this bill; specifically that the marine
pilots associations are addressing the drug-testing recomendati ons
outlined in the audit report and that the audit report did not
identify that drug testing is nmandatory for anyone undertaking
marine pilot training or apprenticeship prograns.

Co- Chair WI ken asked Ms. Davidson to provide a D vision response
regardi ng the mandatory drug testing for trainees.

Captain Wnter agreed with previous testinony that determ ning the
| ength of a vessel is easier than determ ning the tonnage wei ght of
a vessel. He voiced support for establishing 100 feet as the
maxi mum | ength of a foreign flagged vessel that could apply for a
mari ne pilot waiver as, he continued, the association is concerned
about navi gational safety issues that could be presented by ships
exceeding that length. He stated that the association prefers the
word “waiver” rather than “exenption” to ensure that the Board
woul d be involved in the determ nation; and he asserted that the
association would continue to work with the Board on addressing
t hese concerns.

Senat or O son asked the accident rate of foreign flagged vessels in
the State.

Captain Wnter responded that nost accidents in the State have
i nvol ved vessels that are famliar with Alaska’ s waters; therefore,
he contended, there is <concern regarding vessels that are
unfamliar with the State’s waters. He nentioned that small US
vessel s that carry paying passengers are required to have a marine
pilot on board for the first three sailings into an area. He
specified that international tonnage is the preferred unit of
measur enent .

SFC- 03 (12) 02/ 20/ 03



Senator O son asked, due to the occurrence of accidents, the
safeguards provided by requiring marine pilots to be onboard
vessel s.

Captain Wnter replied that he is unaware of a single yacht
accident occurring while a marine pilot was onboard. However, he
stated, not all accidents m ght be reported.

Senat or O son countered that an accident must be reported if an
i nsurance claimis made.

Co-Chair WIken asked whether the sinmulator at the Al aska
Vocati onal and Techni cal Education Center (AVTEC) is beneficial in
pi | ot age training.

Captain Wnter responded that it is a “small” Al aska resource.
However, he noted, new features could be added to the sinmulator to
expand its abilities to the point where it could be effectively
used for training.

Co-Chair WIlken surmsed that the State m ght be required to invest
nore funding into AVTEC

Captain Wnter replied that this would be beneficial.

Co-Chair WIken inquired how many nmarine pilots have failed random
drug testing.

Captain Wnter replied, none.

Senat or Bunde voiced that the wai ver issue should be addressed in
separate | egislation.

Co-Chair Wl ken affirned that the i ssue woul d be addressed either
inthis bill or in another bill.

Co-chair Wl ken ordered the bill HELD in Committee.
#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 10:19 AM

SFC- 03 (13) 02/ 20/ 03



